

9.0 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT

9.1 INTRODUCTION

9.2 GOALS, OBJECTIVES, POLICIES

9.2.1 Introduction

The Capital Improvements Element presents goals, objectives, and policies to be adopted and implemented by the City of Hallandale Beach. These goals, objectives, and policies incorporate the use of sound fiscal principles to efficiently provide and maintain public services and facilities.

These statements present the City's approach toward implementing expansions and improvements to its public services and facilities. This approach ensures that Level of Service standards established in other elements of this comprehensive plan are not compromised by new development, inaction, or neglect.

GOAL 1: The City of Hallandale Beach shall plan and manage its fiscal responsibilities to ensure the timely and efficient provision of capital projects that adequately serve its existing and projected needs.

OBJECTIVE 1.1: A five year schedule of Capital improvements will be maintained. The schedule will be oriented toward implementation of concurrency requirements of Chapter 163.F.S. that require public facilities and services be available, at levels of service consistent with those adopted in the Comprehensive Plan, when the impacts of development occur.

POLICY 1.1.1: The City will annually adopt a budget that contains funding for Capital improvements from the 5 year schedule of improvements.

POLICY 1.1.2: The City shall determine the status and capabilities of existing and proposed facilities (including water, wastewater, solid waste, traffic, stormwater, and recreation/open space) to accommodate current, new, and redevelopment demands. Required improvements will be added to the 5-year Capital Improvements Plan.

POLICY 1.1.3: The Capital Improvements Plan shall be updated annually to include those projects identified in the first five years of the Water Supply Facilities Work Plan to ensure the potable water Level of Service standard is maintained.

POLICY 1.1.4: Capital improvements needs for each individual element of the Comprehensive Plan will be aggregated and listed within the Capital Improvements Element (see Table 9-1). Prioritization of capital improvements projects will be based on their relative importance to achievement of the goals and objectives and implementation of the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. In particular, projects involving public safety and health issues will be of a higher priority than other projects. The five year Schedule of Improvements will include funding for capital improvements

which do not exceed the City's financial capacity to support such expenditures. Funding priorities will be reflected in the annual Five Year Schedule of Improvements through the year in which they appear in the Schedule.

POLICY 1.1.5: Prioritization of funding improvements shall include consideration of eliminating public hazards.

POLICY 1.1.6: Prioritization of funding improvements shall involve coordination with the comprehensive plans of adjacent incorporated communities, in addition to those of the County, Regional Planning Council, State, the Florida Department of Transportation, the South Florida Water Management District, and any other state agencies that provide public facilities in Hallandale Beach.

POLICY 1.1.7: The City of Hallandale Beach will manage its long-term debt in such a manner that the ratio of the debt service millage to the City millage does not exceed 30 percent.

POLICY 1.1.8: Prioritization of capital improvements projects will consider the policies of the other comprehensive plan elements.

OBJECTIVE 1.2: Construction, improvement, or replacement of public facilities shall be provided at a level that maintains Level of Service standards as adopted in the Comprehensive Plan. Facilities necessary to maintain level of service will be included annually in the five-year Capital Improvement Plan.

POLICY 1.2.1: The Development Services Department shall evaluate impacts resulting from new developments to ensure that adequate facilities are either in place or planned so that Level of Service standards are not reduced.

POLICY 1.2.2: Land use decisions that impact the provision of public services or facilities shall be based upon the City's capability to maintain adequate service levels as described in the elements of the Comprehensive Plan.

POLICY 1.2.3: The City shall provide public facilities and services to serve developments for which development orders were issued prior to adoption of the City's Comprehensive Plan. The ability of facilities to serve new development at levels of service at or above adopted levels shall be established prior to issuance of a development order or permit.

POLICY 1.2.4: The City shall ensure that developments that benefit from the extension or provision of services or facilities shall share a cost of the extension of such service or facility, or make contributions to the City to offset the cost of that service or facility.

POLICY 1.2.5: The assessment of needed capital improvements shall be based on the Level of Service standards adopted in the Transportation, Sanitary Sewer, Solid Waste, Stormwater Management, Potable Water, and Natural Groundwater Aquifer Recharge, and Recreation and Open Space Elements of the Comprehensive Plan. These Level of Service standards include:

| | |
|-----------------------|---|
| Transportation | Level of Service "D" for all arterial, collector and local streets, consistent with the adopted Broward County Standard for Urban Streets. |
| Sanitary Sewer | Collection and treatment capacity of 190 gallons per capita per day. |
| Stormwater Management | New Development: Design storm - five year frequency; one hour duration; 3.3 total inches. Existing Development: To meet Florida Building Code drainage standards. |
| Solid Waste | Ability to collect and dispose of 5.65 pounds of solid waste per person per day, which includes nonresidential waste. |
| Potable Water | Maximum day water consumption rate: 175 gallons per capita per day. |
| Recreation/Open Space | Park Area Ratio - 3.00 acres of park and open space per 1,000 residents. |

OBJECTIVE 1.3: Restrict public expenditures that subsidize development that is not well suited to environmental conditions, or that would not be in compliance with any element of the Comprehensive Plan. In particular, restrict investment in coastal high hazard areas, other than public land acquisition for enhancement of natural resources.

POLICY 1.3.1: The City shall not locate any new public facilities within coastal high hazard areas with the exception of recreational facilities and facilities designed to withstand drainage resulting from a 100-year flood.

POLICY 1.3.2: The City shall replace capital facilities which have been destroyed. This shall be accomplished in a manner which is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. Facilities in coastal high hazard areas that are destroyed due to natural disaster will be replaced at levels no greater than the previously existing level of service.

OBJECTIVE 1.4: Funding mechanisms necessary to meet the facilities requirements of the Comprehensive Plan shall be adopted and maintained.

POLICY 1.4.1: In order to adequately maintain adopted Level of Service standards, the City shall maintain an effective and appropriate schedule of user charges, such as the water and wastewater impact fees included in the City Ordinances, and shall employ other appropriate means to properly collect necessary funds.

OBJECTIVE 1.5: Land use decisions and available resources will be coordinated within the five-year capital improvements plan. The Plan will be adopted annually.

POLICY 1.5.1: The City shall review changes to the land use plan for consistency with the five year capital improvements plan.

OBJECTIVE 1.6: The City of Hallandale Beach, in coordination with the County and School Board shall ensure that public school facilities are available for current and future students consistent with available resources and the adopted level of service (LOS).

EVALUATION MEASURE OBJECTIVE 1.6: Record of public school facilities being available at the adopted level of service concurrent with construction of residential development

POLICY 1.6.1: Consistent with policies and procedures within the adopted Interlocal Agreement (ILA), the District Educational Facilities Plan (DEFP) shall contain a five (5) year financially feasible schedule of capital improvements to address existing deficiencies and achieve and maintain the adopted LOS in all Concurrency Service Areas (CSA) This financially feasible schedule shall be updated on an annual basis and adopted into the CIE.

POLICY 1.6.2: The uniform, district-wide LOS shall be 110 percent of the permanent Florida Inventory of School Housing (FISH) capacity for each public elementary, middle and high school.

POLICY 1.6.3: The adopted LOS shall be applied consistently by the City of Hallandale Beach, Broward County, and the School Board, district-wide to all schools of the same type.

POLICY 1.6.4: The School Board's DEFP, as adopted and amended by the School Board on or before September 30th of each year, is hereby adopted by reference into the CIE.

9.3 EXISTING CONDITIONS

This section summarizes the characteristics of existing public facilities and services as presented in the various elements which comprise this comprehensive plan.

9.3.1 Characteristics of Major Public Facilities

9.3.1.1 Public Education Facilities

The City of Hallandale Beach is served by four Broward County public schools within the City limits. They are Hallandale High School located along Foster Road in the vicinity of N.W. 9th Avenue, Gulfstream Middle School, located on SW 4th Avenue, Hallandale Elementary School located on SW 8 Street and the South Area Alternative Center, located at 1050 NW 7 Court. In addition, there is the Hallandale Adult

Community Center (Vocational, Technical, Adult Education) located on SW 3rd Street which is also administered by the Broward County Public Schools system. ~~The Charter Institute Training Center which is a Broward County Public School system charter school is located at 520 NW 5th Street.~~

9.3.1.2 Public Health Facilities

There are no major health care facilities within the City limits of Hallandale Beach. The closest hospital to the City is Aventura Hospital, just south of the City limits. The City is also served by Memorial Hospital in Hollywood and Memorial Regional South Hospital.

9.3.1.3 Transportation

Within Hallandale Beach are approximately 67 miles of public roadways. These roads can be characterized in the following manner:

- o 59 miles of City maintained streets and 8 miles of county and state maintained roads
- o 57 miles of two-lane roads and 10 miles of multi-lane roads
- o 10 miles of arterial roads, 17 miles of collector roads, and 40 miles of local roads

Public transportation consists of 3 systems. Broward County provides Hallandale Beach with 4-5 bus routes and 126 associated bus stops. Metro Dade County maintains 3 bus routes which connect with those of Broward County. The City of Hallandale Beach maintains a minibus system with service primarily within City limits. The city's system consists of 3 minibus routes.

Sidewalks run along both sides of major roads within the City; however there are designated bikeways on US1 and Hallandale Beach Boulevard east of US1. ~~Once the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) completes the construction of Hallandale Beach Boulevard from I-95 to Three Islands Boulevard, there will be~~ is a combination of continuous undesignated and designated bikeway facility on Hallandale Beach Boulevard from I-95 to Three Island Boulevard.

One rail system, the FEC Railroad, passes through the City. The CSX Railroad runs adjacent to the west City limits. There are no seaports or airports within City limits.

9.3.1.4 Sanitary Sewer Facilities

The City of Hallandale Beach's sanitary sewer system consists of collection facilities. The present collection system is composed of 71.6 miles of gravity sewer mains and 15 lift stations.

In 1966, Hallandale Beach entered into agreement with the City of Hollywood for wastewater treatment services. As a result of the agreement, Hallandale Beach

abandoned its 1.0 million gallon per day capacity treatment plant in 1974 and began sending its wastewater to Hollywood's Regional Sewage Treatment Facility. This treatment plant has a capacity of 48.75 million gallons per day, of which 7.85 million gallons per day are reserved for Hallandale Beach. Wastewater flows from Hallandale Beach to the treatment facility averaged 6.9 million gallons per day. The treatment facility has a service area of 139,802 acres and provides service to several other municipalities. Treatment is accomplished utilizing an activated sludge secondary treatment process. Effluent disposal is accomplished through an ocean outfall located approximately 2 miles offshore at a depth of 90 feet, through deep well injection, and through reuse water.

9.3.1.5 Potable Water Facilities

The City of Hallandale Beach's potable water supply system consists of water supply wells (two of which are authorized for daily use), a raw water supply connection from Broward County, a water treatment plant consisting of both a lime-softening treatment component and a nanofiltration membrane treatment component, pumping facilities, and elevated and ground storage facilities. The city's water distribution system consists of 78 miles of pipelines which provide potable supplies to all areas of the City.

The City's sources of water are its two operating wells, purchases of treated water from the City of North Miami Beach, and linkage with Broward County's Southern Regional Wellfield for supply of untreated well water. Demands for potable water are estimated to be ~~6.00~~ 5.4 million gallons per day. Since the City's wells are limited to a production limit of 3.5 million gallons per day, Hallandale Beach's water supply agreement with Broward County provides the additional required capacity.

Previously, Hallandale Beach operated a wellfield consisting of 6 wells located at the City's DPW compound. With the exception of two wells, the wellfield was shut down following concerns expressed by the South Florida Water Management District about saltwater intrusion. Two additional wells can be utilized in emergency situations.

Hallandale Beach's water facilities are designed to provide treatment consisting of lime softening, filtration, and chlorination. Storage facilities consist of two 1.0 million gallon and one 2.0 million gallon ground level concrete tanks and one 200,000 gallon and one 500,000 gallon elevated storage tanks.

9.3.1.6 Stormwater Drainage Facilities

There are no distinguishable drainage basins within the City limits. Flood maps reveal that large areas of the City are subject to flooding during 100-year storm events. Hallandale Beach has undergone a high level of urbanization. Development activity has, over the years, resulted in a large amount of land paved with impermeable material. As well as reducing the land's natural drainage capability, this paving results in greater stormwater flows associated with each rainfall event and a need for a larger and more extensive stormwater drainage system than might otherwise be required.

The City of Hallandale Beach uses two separate systems for controlling stormwater runoff. The positive drain system is composed of drainage lines that channel stormwater directly to nearby waterways, canals, and lakes. This system is utilized extensively in the eastern sector of the City. The French drain filter bed system collects stormwater runoff and allows it to either drain slowly through perforated pipes or dry wells where the water percolates into the ground. Several years ago, the City initiated a program involving the installation of storm drains at locations where severe ponding had occurred following a storm event. A significant improvement has been realized through the stormwater drainage facilities capital improvement project.

9.3.1.7 Solid Waste Collection Facilities

The City of Hallandale Beach provides solid waste collection services, and through contract with a private company, disposal service for most City residents. The City collected approximately ~~26,800~~ 26,500 tons of solid waste in FY 20078.

Collection and disposal service is also provided to some residential and commercial locations by 6 private companies. It is estimated that these private companies collected ~~4,700~~ 5,800 tons in FY 20078.

There are no public or private solid waste disposal facilities located in the Hallandale Beach's City limits.

9.3.1.8 Recreation Facilities

Publicly provided recreation facilities consist primarily of ~~the~~ park and recreation areas owned and maintained by the City. These areas are:

Facility

- Foster Park
- O.B. Johnson Park
- B. F. James Park
- North City Beach
- Golden Isles Tennis Complex
- Bluesten Park
- Ingalls Park
- Golden Isles Park
- Scavo Park
- ~~SW Neighborhood Park~~ Sunset Park
- ~~NE Neighborhood Park~~ Sunrise Park
- Hallandale High School
- Public Waterways
- Hallandale Adult Center
- South City Beach
- Hallandale Beach Cultural Community Center
- Hallandale Beach Teen Center

These public parks and recreation areas offer a wide range of facilities that include: swimming pools, baseball fields, bocce ball, tennis courts, an audinasium, paddleball courts, rollerskating, track event areas, volleyball fields, football fields, ping pong areas, and arts and crafts areas.

9.3.2 Levels of Service Provided by Major Public Facilities

This section summarizes results of the analyses of public facilities and services that were performed in the elements of the Comprehensive Plan. This information provides the basis for requirements and priorities of the City to ensure that its goals, objectives, and policies, and its Level of Service standards are reached and maintained.

9.3.2.1 Transportation

Several existing problems were identified regarding traffic circulation within the City. These include:

- o Hallandale Beach Boulevard's predominant function is as a regional arterial roadway serving north Miami-Dade County and south Broward County. However, the road lacks a well defined, sufficient support system of collector streets.

This deficiency forces Hallandale Beach Boulevard to provide property access and to support local circulation, numerous pedestrian crossings and bus and minibus routes. These additional uses of Hallandale Beach Boulevard are inconsistent with its primary role and inhibit its ability to function efficiently as a regional arterial roadway.

- o The types and frequency of traffic barriers within the City adversely affect traffic circulation, resulting in inadequate access and continuous flow of traffic. These traffic barriers include bodies of water, railroad crossings, Interstate 95, large land areas, and political boundaries. In efforts to overcome these barriers, traffic is forced on to Hallandale Beach Boulevard, adding to its problems as presented above.
- o Traffic circulation is subject to delays caused by events at Gulfstream Racetrack and Casino and Mardi Gras Racetrack and Gaming Center, trains crossing roadways intersecting the FEC and CSX railroad tracks, and the opening of the Intracoastal Waterway Bridge to accommodate boat traffic.
- o Land use within the cities of Hallandale Beach, Hollywood and Golden Beach is predominantly residential. Residents of these communities must commute across the Intracoastal Waterway for many activities including shopping, employment, and medical care.

These three traffic circulation problems within the City of Hallandale Beach combine to create effects including congestion, excessive delays, and safety hazards to motorists and pedestrians.

Hallandale Beach currently meets or exceeds Level of Service D on all City roads. The congested intersections of Hallandale Beach Boulevard with US 1 and A1A sometimes fall below Level of Service D. A Master Transportation Plan ~~is currently being~~ has been finalized that ~~will~~ includes major recommendations for traffic improvements.

9.3.2.2 Sanitary Sewer Facilities

Although there are no problems at present regarding the capacity of the sanitary sewer facilities used by Hallandale Beach to collect, treat, and dispose of the wastewater it generates, capacity will become an issue with future redevelopment.

The City is aware of infiltration/inflow in its wastewater collection system. The City has taken actions to reduce infiltration/inflow rates by initiating repairs, purchasing necessary equipment, and funding studies to determine locations of significant flows through the Capital Improvement Project that is funded on an annual basis.

9.3.2.3 Potable Water Facilities

There are no significant problems associated with the City's potable water facilities. Hallandale Beach's agreement with Broward County provides water which supplements the supplies from its two operating wells. In addition, the City has computerized and upgraded its treatment plant.

In February 2005 the City began the construction of its new 6 MGD membrane softening water treatment plant. Construction was completed in February 2008 and the plant is operational.

The only area of the City presently experiencing low pressures during high demand periods is the Golden Isles area. Planned capital improvements are anticipated to address this problem by 2010.

Furthermore, in light of continuing saltwater intrusion, the City is beginning to plan for the eventual reduction of its wells. One promising option is the installation of new wells west of the City's borders.

9.3.2.4 Stormwater Drainage Facilities

Over two-thirds of the City is designated by the National Flood Insurance Program as special flood hazard areas. These areas are statistically subject to flooding more frequently than once every 100 years. To eliminate areas where severe ponding of water has occurred following more usual storm events, the City has over the past several years installed storm drains and drainage wells. Presently, almost all of the previously identified problem areas have had storm drains or other drainage structures installed.

Additionally, the City typically enhances its swales whenever it implements drainage improvements. This increases stormwater drainage capacity and decreases the potential for flooding.

9.3.2.5 Solid Waste Collection Facilities

The City currently provides collection and disposal service for most of the City's residents.

Hallandale Beach entered into an agreement with Waste Management, Inc. It is estimated that this facility will provide disposal capacity through the year 2011. After the agreement expires in 2011, the City is free to negotiate disposal service with other entities.

9.3.2.6 Recreation/Open Space

The City of Hallandale Beach contains ~~106.68~~ 142.68 acres of waterways and ~~59.57~~ 108.56 acres of Parks. The combination provides about ~~4.35~~ 7.3 acres per thousand residents for recreation and open space.

9.3.3 Existing Revenue Sources

Revenues to the City's General Fund come from four primary sources. Ad Valorem taxes supply the largest single portion, about ~~48.7%~~ 47.9% of total General Fund revenues. Franchise and Utility Taxes supply about ~~12.9%~~ 13.0% of the total. State & County Revenues and Charges for Services supply about ~~40.9%~~ 10.1% and ~~4.3%~~ 3.1% respectively. Fire special assessments are ~~7.3%~~ 9.0% of the total; six other line items make up the remaining revenues.

City staff expects Ad Valorem revenues to ~~increase~~ decrease as a percent of total General Fund revenues to about ~~53.6%~~ 45.1% by FY 2012~~3-134~~. Other sources of revenue are expected to ~~decrease~~ increase as a percent of the total. Total General Fund revenues are projected to ~~increase~~ decrease from about \$54,025,000 \$48,616,000 in FY 2008~~9-0910~~ to about \$63,254,000 \$48,024,000 in FY 2012~~3-134~~.

Sewer Fund revenues are anticipated to increase from about \$10,446,000 \$10,234,000 in FY 2008~~9-0910~~ to approximately \$12,019,000 \$12,950,000 in FY 2012~~3-134~~. User charges are expected to provide about ~~98%~~ 99.4% of the total in FY 2008~~9-0910~~ and about ~~98.3%~~ 99.5% of the total in FY 2012~~3-134~~.

Water Fund revenues are anticipated to increase from about \$10,618,000 \$11,445,400 in FY 2008~~9-0910~~ to approximately \$12,962,000 \$11,500,000 in FY 2012~~3-134~~. User charges are expected to produce ~~90.7%~~ 91.6% of the total in FY 2008~~9-0910~~ and about ~~92.3%~~ the same of the total in FY 2012~~3-134~~.

9.3.4 Local Policies and Practices

Hallandale Beach analyzes its capital improvements needs every year as a part of its annual budgeting process. Departments of City government indicate their needs and a citywide Capital Improvements Plan is developed. A five-year capital outlay schedule is used to provide long-term direction and coordination.

Level of Service standards are adopted in this Comprehensive Plan to provide additional guidance in the determination of the need for and timing of capital improvements. The level of service standards may affect the timing and location of development or redevelopment if there is a delay in the provision of necessary facilities and services.

9.3.5 Need For, and Timing of Capital Improvements

Capital improvements needs identified in the other elements of this comprehensive plan are listed in Table 9-1. Funds are expected to be spent during the year or years specified for each project. The table also indicates whether the project will remedy an existing deficiency, produce additional capacity, or replace current capital assets. The suggested source of funds is also indicated for each project.

The capital improvements identified in the other elements and summarized in this element are designed to support efficient land use in the City of Hallandale Beach as presented in the Future Land Use Element, although most of the capital improvements are not closely related to future land development. Scheduled capital improvements are designed to address the needs of the current population, as well as new residents and businesses resulting from redevelopment.

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is the only state agency planning to provide additional public facilities in Hallandale Beach. One major FDOT project in FY ~~2008~~ 2010 entails improvements to ~~West Hallandale Beach Boulevard~~ AIA, including resurfacing of asphalt, sidewalk repair, and curb enhancements. The South Florida Water Management District has no major facilities within Hallandale Beach, and has no plans to construct any in the future.

9.3.6 Fiscal Implications of Existing Public Facility Deficiencies, Priorities of Need, and Costs of Mitigating Deficiencies

Hallandale Beach intends to finance its Capital Improvements Plan using retained earnings, developer contributions, grants, loans and future operating revenues. The CIP will not place an excessive burden on the City's revenue generation capabilities. The City does not expect to increase ad valorem tax rates during each of the next five years to finance the 5-Year_CIP. If this expectation is not met, the City will consider the removal of low priority projects from the 5-Year CIP, and the possibility of either debt financing or raising the millage rate.

The prioritization of the capital improvements is based on their relative importance to implementing the goals, objectives, and policies of the comprehensive plan. High priority improvements are to be funded earlier and lower priority improvements are to be funded in later years.

Capital improvement needs identified in each element of the Comprehensive Plan will be evaluated. If budget or other constraints exist, capital improvement needs identified in elements pertaining to public safety and welfare will be given priority over needs relating to local amenities, such as parks and recreation. The evaluation of capital improvement projects will include consideration of the following items: the elimination of public hazards and existing capacity deficits; the impact on the City's budget; financial feasibility; the demands created by any development or redevelopment, including related locational needs; and the plans of state agencies and the South Florida Water Management District.

9.4 ANALYSIS OF EXISTING CONDITIONS

9.4.1 Necessity for a Capital Improvements Plan to Provide Required Levels of Service

Most components of the capital improvements plan presented in section 9.5 of this element are not necessary to provide required levels of service in Hallandale Beach. Most projects in the plan are designed to enhance the quality of the services provided for City residents.

9.4.2 City's Ability to Finance Capital Improvements

Hallandale Beach's legal debt limit is 10 percent of the total assessed value of all real property in the City. At the end of fiscal year 2006~~7-078~~, the debt margin totaled \$568,119,410 \$632,870,618 as detailed below:

| | | |
|--|----------------------------|------------------------|
| Net Assessed Value | \$4,197,777,283 | <u>\$4,768,862,630</u> |
| Plus Exempt Property | \$1,483,416,817 | <u>\$1,559,843,550</u> |
| Total Assessed Value | \$5,681,194,100 | <u>\$6,328,706,180</u> |
| Debt Limit (10% of total assessed Value) | \$ 568,119,410 | <u>\$ 632,870,618</u> |
| Total Debt | \$ 0 | <u>\$ 0</u> |
| Legal Debt Margin | \$ 568,119,410 | <u>\$ 632,870,618</u> |

Source: Broward County Form DR 403-AM FY 2006~~7-078~~.

The City's estimate of the net assessed value of all real property in the City for FY 2007~~8-089~~ is ~~\$4,911,600,000~~ \$4,756,000,000 which represents an ~~increase~~ decrease of about 17.1% 0.3% from FY 2006~~7-078~~.

The City contains very little land which could support new development. In addition, the current economic downturn has negatively impacted ~~however because of~~ redevelopment and ~~increasing~~ property values in general. This figure is estimated to

continue to ~~increase~~. ~~Because of these increasing property values, and~~ Hallandale Beach's projected debt capacity is expected to ~~increase~~ as follows:

| Fiscal Year Ending | Debt Capacity | |
|--------------------|---------------|----------------------|
| 2009 10 | 489,848,000 | <u>\$535,450,000</u> |
| 2010 11 | 504,543,000 | <u>\$459,952,000</u> |
| 2011 12 | 519,680,000 | <u>\$473,751,000</u> |
| 2012 13 | 540,467,000 | <u>\$478,489,000</u> |
| 2013 14 | 567,490,000 | <u>\$492,844,000</u> |

The City's long-term debt at September 30, 2007~~8~~ consists of: a Revenue Note Series 2002, Revenue Bonds Series 2001A, Revenue Bonds Series 2005A and Revenue Bonds Series 2007A.

The Revenue Note, Series 2002 line of credit, not to exceed \$5,000,000 with an amortization onset date of August 15, 2003, is for the purpose of funding various CRA projects. The note is not a general obligation of the City and is to be paid from CRA District revenue. Interest at 51.2% of the prime rate (5.0%) is 2.56% as of September 30, 2008 is payable semiannually. Principal is payable semiannually in equal installments and the final payment has been made in the subsequent fiscal year.

The Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A were issued for the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of a new membrane water treatment plant, construction and improvements to the stormwater drainage system and the sewer system. The bonds are not general obligation bonds of the City, bear interest of 4.46% as of September 30, 2008 and are to be repaid solely from non-ad valorem revenue. Principal is payable annually and the bonds mature on November 1, 2021.

The Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A were issued for the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of a new membrane water treatment plant, construction and improvements to the stormwater drainage system, and construction and improvements to the sewer system. The bonds are not general obligation bonds of the City, bear interest of 3.98% as of September 30, 2008 and are to be repaid solely from non-ad valorem revenue. Principal is payable annually and the bonds mature on February 1, 2025.

The Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A were issued for the purpose of financing the acquisition of park land. The bonds are not general obligation bonds of the City, bear interest of 4.83% as of September 30, 2008 and are to be repaid solely from non-ad valorem revenue. Principal is payable annually and the bonds mature on February 1, 2027.

A summary of annual debt service requirements as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

| Year Ending September 30, | Governmental Activities | | | | Business Type Activities | | | |
|------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------|-------------------------------|----------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------|
| | Revenue Note, Series 2002 | | Revenue Bonds Series 2007A | | Revenue Bonds Series 2001A | | Revenue Bonds Series 2005A | |
| | Principal | Interest | Principal | Interest | Principal | Interest | Principal | Interest |
| 2009 | \$ 96,385 | \$ 2,036 | \$ 795,000 | \$ 1,166,850 | \$ 190,000 | \$ 185,075 | \$ 330,000 | \$ 342,390 |
| 2010 | - | - | 830,000 | 1,133,063 | 200,000 | 175,325 | 345,000 | 331,853 |
| 2011 | - | - | 865,000 | 1,097,787 | 210,000 | 165,075 | 355,000 | 319,578 |
| 2012 | - | - | 910,000 | 1,055,925 | 220,000 | 154,325 | 370,000 | 306,465 |
| 2013 | - | - | 955,000 | 1,012,750 | 235,000 | 142,950 | 380,000 | 292,378 |
| 2014-2018 | - | - | 5,535,000 | 4,299,000 | 1,355,000 | 514,881 | 2,135,000 | 1,227,446 |
| 2019-2023 | - | - | 7,030,000 | 2,835,875 | 1,355,000 | 133,432 | 2,685,000 | 668,875 |
| 2024-2027 | - | - | 7,015,000 | 898,500 | - | - | 1,280,000 | 64,750 |
| | <u>\$ 96,385</u> | <u>\$ 2,036</u> | <u>\$ 23,935,000</u> | <u>\$ 13,499,750</u> | <u>\$ 3,765,000</u> | <u>\$ 1,471,063</u> | <u>\$ 7,880,000</u> | <u>\$ 3,553,735</u> |

The City has no general obligation bonded debt outstanding.

9.5 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS SCHEDULE

The Capital Improvements Plan presented in this section includes a listing of each project, the year or years in which the city's capital resources will be utilized to fund the improvement, sources of revenues to fund the proposed improvements, as well as the anticipated impacts of the improvements on operating costs and estimated city-wide revenues for the 5-year planning period.

This Capital Improvements Plan is primarily composed of projects that will enhance the quality of the services provided to City residents, rather than correct deficiencies in the levels of service. Currently, all specified levels of service in this comprehensive plan are being met by the City.

9.5.1 Description of the CIP, Resulting Levels of Service

Capital cost estimates for each project in Hallandale Beach's Capital Improvements Plan for each of the next five years are shown in Table 9-2.

Cost estimates are derived by using various methods which include the experience of City Staff, consultant estimates and construction cost guides. Estimates are designed to include expected future inflation.

Short titles of the projects appear in Table 9-2; greater detail for each project can be found in the element which identified the need for the project.

9.5.2 Sources of Funds for Proposed Capital Improvements.

The projected expenditures for all proposed projects are aggregated in Table 9-3 by proposed source of funds. Annual projected costs of implementing five year CIP range from ~~\$7,171,924~~ \$3,633,200 in FY 20089/09~~10~~ to ~~\$1,005,000~~ \$1,795,000 in FY 20123/13~~4~~. All proposed projects were analyzed to determine their impact on the city's operating budget. The net impact of the proposed projects is a reduction in operating costs over the next five years. The largest single item is the savings expected to result from the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation project. This effort is expected to reduce inflow and infiltration into the wastewater system, thereby reducing flow based treatment costs paid by the City to Hollywood. ~~Measurable Operating cost savings are estimated to increase from reach \$275,000 in FY 2008/09 to about \$60,000 in and are expected to grow throughout FY 2012/13~~ difficult to quantify but are shown to be significant every year. Additional cost savings are being realized through reduced emergency repairs and avoidance of health and environmental damage that could occur during a major system failure.

Projections of Hallandale Beach's tax base, millage rate, and the projected ad valorem revenue which results are shown in Table 9-4. The City has experienced a decrease in its tax base of approximately ~~0.3%~~ 15.3% in valuation this year.

An additional source of capital improvements funding is the Transportation Fund. Capital improvements and other operating expenditures funded by the Transportation Fund, have been greater than anticipated revenues. Additional funds have been transferred into this fund from various other funds within the City in order to maintain existing programs. Sources of the fund are the City's portion of State revenue sharing, the County's local option gasoline tax, and interest on investments.

Table 9-5 presents projected revenues for the City's General Fund for FY 20089/09~~10~~ through FY 20123/13~~4~~. Operations and maintenance expense and the total cost of the capital expenditures which will be funded out of the general fund are also shown.

Table 9-6 shows projected revenues, operations and maintenance and capital expense totals, and the resulting fund balance for the Sewer Fund for FY 20089/09~~10~~ to FY 20123/13~~4~~.

Table 9-7 contains projected revenues, operating and maintenance, and capital expenditures, and the resulting fund balances for the Water Fund for FY 20089/09~~10~~ to FY 20123/13~~4~~.

Tables 9-5, 9-6, and 9-7 demonstrate Hallandale Beach's ability to meet the obligations created by the Capital Improvements Plan.

9.6 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

This Capital Improvements Element of the City of Hallandale Beach's Comprehensive Plan is intended to demonstrate the feasibility and sufficiency of the capital improvement plan. The capital improvements in the CIP are based on the analyses in each element of the plan, and are therefore, scheduled to meet the growth projected by the City, and support the goals, objectives, and policies of this plan.

The City will implement the provisions in this element by adoption of the goals, objectives, and policies and execution of the capital improvements plan contained herein.